
 

 

 
  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 
  July 15, 2020   

 
 

1. WELCOME  
 Good and Welfare 

 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA
 Minutes of June 12, 2020 and June 18, 2020 Board Meetings        pg. 2

 
     

3. RRRF INSTITUTIONAL GRANTS PRESENTATION & VOTE*      pg. 9 

 

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Items requiring a vote 

 

 

  
Page 1 of 31

 



 

 

 
Board of Trustees 

Minutes of Jun. 12, 2020 
Call to order: 8:35 a.m.   Adjournment: 9:03 a.m. 

 
Presiding: Leigh A. Newman, Chair                Recording: M. Leighty 
 
Present: Jessica L. Fish; Gerald B. Goldberg; Blanche S. Goldenberg; Robert B. Goldfarb; Joshua Gottfried; Elysa L. Graber‐Lipperman; Walter L. 
Harrison; Leigh A. Newman; David M. Roth; Cyral A. Sheldon; Julie R. Spivak; Gayle W. Temkin; Robert K. Yass; Carolyn Gitlin, ex‐officio. 
 
Absent: Thomas M. Divine; Merrill Mandell; Steven F. Piaker; Randall H. Weinstock. 
 
Also Attending (non‐voting): Jacob Schreiber, President & CEO; Michael Elfenbaum, Vice President, Grant Programs; Kathryn Gonnerman, Vice 
President, Philanthropy; Madison Leighty, Development Assistant; Susan Lotreck, Vice President, Donor Services; Elana MacGilpin, Development 
and Stewardship Officer; Rhona Morgan, Vice President, Finance; Maureen O’Connell, Marketing Director; Goldy Singh, Grants & Donor Services 
Assistant. 
 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

Welcome and Chair’s Remarks  Ms. Newman welcomed everyone and called the 
meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. 

   
 
 

Proposed RRR Fund Grant 
Guidelines 
 

Mr. Schreiber informed the Trustees that the proposed 
Jewish Hartford Rapid Relief and Recovery Fund (‘RRR 
Fund’) grant guidelines prioritized financial aid to 
community agencies and assistance to synagogues. The 
grants would support community organizations as 
ongoing needs are evaluated and addressed. 
 
Mr. Ulreich and Mr. Elfenbaum provided an overview 
of fund activity and outlined the proposed guidelines. 
Of the approximately $880,000 raised, $150,000 has 
been set aside for a Hebrew Loan Society, and $50,000 
has been granted out to support the food delivery 
program. The proposed guidelines designate an 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Page 2 of 31

 



 
2 

 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

additional $175,000 for support of basic human needs 
through this or similar programs. Additionally, 
$280,000 would be set aside for community agencies, 
to be granted for scholarships or programs that directly 
address basic human needs impacted by the COVID‐19 
pandemic. The remaining $225,000 would be set aside 
for synagogues, which could receive grants to support 
COVID‐19‐related humanitarian needs and operational 
support. Applications would be completed in 
coordination with community liaisons from the RRR 
Fund team, with agency applications due in early 
August and synagogue applications due after Yom 
Kippur. All grant decisions would be made by the RRR 
Fund Committee and presented to the Trustees of the 
Federation and JCF for final approval.  
 
Mr. Ulreich notified the Trustees that the Federation 
Trustees had already approved the guidelines and that 
they would be implemented and communicated upon 
approval by the JCF Trustees. 
 
Ms. Newman acknowledged the hard work of the RRR 
Fund committee and JCF and Federation staffs, 
emphasizing that the guidelines were intended to be 
equitable and strategic. Trustees discussed the need to 
ensure that distributions from the RRR Fund were 
efficient and effective in addressing community needs, 
the difference in timelines between agency and 
synagogue grant cycles, and the strategic differences 
between the proposed grant guidelines and the JCF and 
Federation’s own grants programs for FY2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the Trustees 
unanimously approved the 
proposed guidelines for the 
distribution of the RRR Fund. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The approved RRR Fund grant 
guidelines will be implemented 
by the Fund’s grants 
committee and communicated 
to the community. 
 

Adjournment:   Ms. Newman ended the meeting at 9:03 a.m. and 
reminded the Trustees that the Foundation’s 
Community Grants Program guidelines for FY2021 

    
  

  
Page 3 of 31

 



 
3 

 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

would be discussed at the regularly scheduled board 
meeting on June 18, 2020. 

 
Respectfully submitted by:  
 
__________________________ 
Gerald Goldberg, Secretary   
 

 

 

  
Page 4 of 31

 



 

 

 
Board of Trustees 

Minutes of Jun. 18, 2020 
Call to order: 4:34 p.m.   Adjournment: 6:35 p.m. 

 
Presiding: Leigh A. Newman, Chair                Recording: M. Leighty 
 
Present: Jessica L. Fish; Gerald B. Goldberg; Blanche S. Goldenberg; Robert B. Goldfarb; Joshua Gottfried; Elysa L. Graber‐Lipperman; Walter L. 
Harrison; Merrill Mandell; Leigh A. Newman; Steven F. Piaker; David M. Roth; Cyral A. Sheldon; Julie R. Spivak; Gayle W. Temkin; Robert K. Yass. 
 
Absent: Thomas M. Divine; Carolyn Gitlin, ex‐officio; Randall H. Weinstock. 
 
Also Attending (non‐voting): Jacob Schreiber, President & CEO; Michael Elfenbaum, Vice President, Grant Programs; Kathryn Gonnerman, Vice 
President, Philanthropy; Madison Leighty, Development Assistant; Susan Lotreck, Vice President, Donor Services; Elana MacGilpin, Development 
and Stewardship Officer; Rhona Morgan, Vice President, Finance; Maureen O’Connell, Marketing Director; Goldy Singh, Grants & Donor Services 
Assistant; Steven Kleinman, Budget & Finance Committee; Brandon McGee, Jr., Connecticut State Representative, Windsor and Hartford. 
 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

Welcome and Chair’s Remarks  Ms. Newman welcomed everyone to the meeting.     
 

Consent Agenda 
Minutes of April 30, 2020 meeting 
 

Ms. Newman directed the Trustees’ attention to the 
minutes of the trustee meeting held on April 30, 2020. 

Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the minutes of the 
April 30, 2020 meeting were 
unanimously approved. 

The minutes of the April 30, 
2020 meeting will be filed in 
the corporate notebook. 

Community Perspective: Black 
Lives Matter 
State Rep. Brandon McGee, Jr. (D‐
Hartford/Windsor) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Newman introduced Brandon McGee, Jr., CT State 
Representative for Windsor and Hartford. Rep. McGee 
addressed recent protests against police brutality and 
systemic racism. He urged the Trustees to take action 
and get involved, volunteering and influencing others 
in their communities. He discussed specific issues in 
Connecticut, including mass incarceration, and offered 
suggestions of local grassroots organizations to 
support. The history and future of the US Black‐Jewish 
alliance was discussed by the Trustees. Rep. McGee 

   

  
Page 5 of 31

 



 
2 

 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

 
 
 
 
 

encouraged self‐education and participating in 
conversations about racial equity with other members 
of the Jewish community, noting that spreading 
awareness of racism is integral to the struggle for racial 
equity. 

President’s Report 
Overview of key issues and 
activities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Juneteenth statement 

Mr. Schreiber provided an update on the JCF 
investment pool, which was valued around $125 
million as of June 17, 2020, a total decrease of 4% over 
the calendar year so far. This represents a rebound 
from the market crash earlier in the quarter. However, 
Mr. Schreiber reminded the Trustees that the effect of 
the COVID‐19 pandemic on the economy was far from 
over and that things would likely continue to fluctuate 
for the foreseeable future. 
 
Mr. Schreiber introduced the proposed statement that 
the Foundation planned to communicate on 
Juneteenth in support of the Black community and 
anti‐racism. The Trustees discussed the statement, 
suggesting minor changes in wording. Trustees and 
staff also spoke about how to move forward with 
choosing an organization or organizations to support as 
part of the statement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the Juneteenth 
statement was unanimously 
approved with the amendments 
agreed upon by the Trustees 
during discussion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The JCF staff and grants 
committee will propose a 
grantee or grantees to the 
Trustees at the next board 
meeting. 

Scholarship Committee Report  Ms. Mandell presented an overview of the scholarship 
committee’s activities. 32 scholarships were awarded 
(of 47 applications) totaling around $90,000 from 14 
scholarship funds. Ms. Mandell praised the 
committee’s flexibility in adjusting their processes 
during a pandemic. She shared a thank‐you note from a 
scholarship recipient. 

   

Grants Report 
Special FY2021 Community Grants 
Program Guidelines 

Mr. Schreiber reviewed the proposal for the 
Community Grants Program, which included allocating 
the remaining $212,000 from the frozen FY2020 CGP 
budget, as well as next year’s approximately $500,000. 
These funds would be granted to community 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Page 6 of 31

 



 
3 

 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

organizations to support stabilization, innovation and 
humanitarian relief during the COVID‐19 crisis. 
 
Mr. Elfenbaum reviewed the proposed guidelines for 
community grants. Grants would be awarded to 
organizations based on the essentiality of their services 
to the Jewish community, the long‐term viability of the 
organizations (including actions taken to mitigate 
losses since the crisis began in mid‐March) and proven 
innovation and efficiency in the supported programs’ 
strategies. Synagogue grants would remain capped at 
one grant of $2,000, but Mr. Elfenbaum stated that the 
Foundation will encourage synagogues that need more 
support to apply for “innovation/efficiency grants” in 
collaboration with other synagogues. Applications 
would begin August 1 with quarterly reassessment of 
criteria. 
 
The Trustees discussed the nature of the CGP proposal, 
including its focus on funding services that are proven 
essential and efficient for the Greater Hartford Jewish 
community, rather than the more egalitarian approach 
of the jointly operated Jewish Hartford Rapid Relief and 
Recovery Fund (‘RRR Fund’). They emphasized the 
necessity of close collaboration with grantee 
organizations and coordination of the CGP process with 
this year’s Community Wish List for DAF distributions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the Trustees 
unanimously approved the 
proposed Community Grants 
Program guidelines for FY2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The CGP guidelines will be 
reassessed quarterly. 

Budget & Finance Committee 
Report 
Proposed FY2021 Budget 

Mr. Kleinman reviewed the Foundation’s proposed 
FY2021 budget, noting that in order to make up for an 
expected decrease in revenue from market fluctuation, 
no increases were made to staff salary. 

Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the Trustees 
unanimously approved the 
proposed FY2021 budget. 

 

Adjournment:   Ms. Newman thanked the Trustees and called the 
meeting to a close at 6:35 p.m. 

    

 
 

  
Page 7 of 31

 



 
4 

 

Respectfully submitted by:  
 
__________________________ 
Gerald Goldberg, Secretary   
 

 

 

 

  
Page 8 of 31

 



Rapid Response and Recovery Grants Committee Meeting – July 9, 2020 
 
Participating via Zoom: Michael Elfenbaum, Carolyn Gitlin, Alan Mendelson, Leigh Newman, Anne 
Martha Pitegoff, David Rosenthal, Jacob Schreiber, Gary Starr, Gayle Temkin, Linda Toce, Sid Ulreich, 
David Waren, Cheryl Wolmer and Laura Zimmerman 
 

I. Introduction 
The purpose of the meeting was to have the committee share their thoughts on the grant requests, 
agree on recommendations for the Foundation and Federation boards to approve and then make the 
distributions from the fund.  The most urgent needs would be discussed at this meeting. 
 

II. Update on the food program 
Two grants have been made to Jewish Family Services (JFS).  The first month they spent slightly more 
than the $10,000 grant and the past month a little under $10,000 was spent.  In terms of COVID‐19 
related clients, at the beginning of June there were 135 families, half of which was by delivery.  By June 
19, the number was down to 108 and only four were by delivery.  Deliveries are made only to those who 
really need them; everyone else is curbside pickup.  Anyone who is still receiving food that was in the 
COVID‐19 program is now being required to register with JFS as a Food Pantry client.  This allows them 
to have just one set of records and this allows them to track the clients to make sure they continue to 
have that need and ensure that they are transitioned out of the food program if their COVID‐19 related 
distress is over and they have gone back to work and no longer have that need.   
 
The cost of the food remains high because there is little available from Foodshare and JFS is having to 
purchase food from wholesalers.  A number of individuals have been donating fresh food and dairy 
which helps control costs.  The produce bags are going out to COVID‐19 clients as well as regular JFS 
clients.   
 
When unemployment runs out, JFS is preparing for the possibility that there may be an increased need 
for food.  Once the unemployment scales back, a new marketing push may be needed to get the word 
out that this help is available.  Once the money runs out, one option is for the Rapid Relief Development 
Committee to go back for a second round of donations, or JFS may have to assume the COVD‐19 clients 
as long‐term clients. JFS is prepared to find ways to ensure this continues.  One of the hopes is that 
Foodshare will start having more food available which will help reduce the costs overall. 
 
Laura Zimmerman added that $11,000 has been given out to 24 different families and three second 
requests have been received.  The criteria states that they can be funded twice.  About three requests 
come in per week, and on average, one of the requests does not meet the criteria. 
 

III. Grant Recommendations 
The funding requests under consideration are the immediate, critical needs that a few organizations are 
facing right now.   
 

1. Mandell JCC 
The JCC has suffered a huge impact to its income stream.  The JCC was closed, the fitness center 
was closed, the camp was reduced, etc.  They will have a $200,000 deficit and will double what 
they’re using for their line of credit by the end of August.  They are working on plans for major 
fundraising from the community.  By the end of May, many people had paid their membership 
dues.  They continue to provide programs via Zoom and the gym, camp and swim club will be 

  
Page 9 of 31

 



2 
 

opening.  They likely will request more help through the Rapid Relief Fund and/or the 
Foundation’s Community Grants Program.  The Committee was in agreement that funding is 
needed immediately to assist the JCC. 
Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the Committee voted unanimously to recommend a 
grant of $50,000 for general operating support.   
 

2. Hebrew Senior Care  
David Waren, Jacob Schreiber and Alan Mendelson met with HSC earlier in the day.  Their COVID‐
19 related hit is about $270,000, the bulk of which is $220,000 because their census has 
decreased from people who have died, and no new people are moving in because of COVID‐19.  
The Behavioral Health unit is open with 37 beds filled.  There is a lag time of 90 days, however, 
from when people are first admitted and when Medicare and Medicaid reimbursements are 
received.  By the end of the year, they should have no deficit.  In talking to them, Madelene 
Francese indicated their Wi‐Fi isn’t good enough to cover everyone in the building and in the 
apartments, which makes people feel isolated.  They want to be able to have stronger signals for 
the residents’ well‐being.  HSC does not have the money to expand and improve the Wi‐Fi.  The 
estimate of the cost will be about $10,000.  Once a quote is received, it will be reviewed to see if 
the amount is appropriate. 

 
Several questions were asked about the residents’ ability to get their own Wi‐Fi, their capability 
to pay a monthly fee for service, how many residents have it now, how many don’t have it now? 
Of those who don’t, how many wouldn’t use it anyway?   
 
More information is needed to quantify the need before a recommendation is made.  
 

3. Solomon Schechter Day School & New England Jewish Academy 
Based upon data received from each school, the enrollment should be at least the same as last 
year.  Families have either signed commitments or have verbally committed to send their 
children.  Some families both for Schechter and NEJA that are pending.  What both schools are 
seeing is a big increase in requests for financial assistance.  If the schools are able to tell those 
families now that money will be made available for scholarships, it will help insure enrollment.  
Right now the plan is to open the schools.   

 
A brief discussion was held on support from other communities that send their children to NEJA. 
David Waren noted that the students from New Haven are high school students and he’s almost 
certain that New Haven will contribute.  He said that as the schools re‐open it is likely it will be 
very part time in school for each individual student and remote the rest of the time.   
 

Andrea Kasper’s announcement that this will be her last year at Schechter should not impact 
enrollment at Schechter.   NEJA has a new Head of School, Nathan Katz.  The early childhood 
schools are opening as of now; however, that may change.  If they can’t offer early childhood in 
person, there will be no early childhood since virtual does not work. 
 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the Committee voted unanimously to recommend a 
grant of $30,000 each to both SSDS & NEJA for scholarships.   
 
 
 

  
Page 10 of 31

 



3 
 

4. Mikveh Bess Israel  
The Mikveh is a small organization with a $40,000 budget that is run mostly by volunteers.  They 
have seen a reduction in donations and usage.  It’s an important part of religious life in the 
community they have requested assistance immediately in order to continue operations. They 
have a number of needs and are looking for other support (the Capital Grants committee just 
awarded a grant to fix some electrical issues). 
Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the Committee voted unanimously to recommend a 
grant of $5,000 for general operating support.   

 
5. Chabad of Greater Hartford  

There are actually four separate Chabads in the Greater Hartford area: West Hartford (including 
Camp Gan Israel and Friendship Circle); East of the River in Glastonbury; Chabad of the Valley in 
Simsbury (which is fully independent and not connected to the other Chabads); and Chabad at 
the University of Hartford.  These organizations rely on fundraising rather than membership.  
Because of how they are structured, some of them did not qualify for the Payroll Protection 
Program.   
 
Discussion 
 

Friendship Circle and University of Hartford are mostly based on academic year programs.  How 
were they anticipating those programs since no one knows what the university is going to do?  
Will they be doing a hybrid of people on campus and remote learning?  To what extent will their 
program be reduced because of that?  David Waren replied that Friendship Circle is not 
dependent on the academic year.  The volunteers who work with the special needs students are 
high school students themselves and whether they’re in school or working remotely, that will 
continue. The expenses for the Friendship Circle go to admin, office and promotion, 
programming, staffing and payroll.  The Chabad is not supported by the University. 
 

A question was asked to what extent is Chabad a good partner with the rest of the Jewish 
community, i.e. to what extent do they provide support to the Federation, to what extent do 
they have any money at the Foundation, to what extent are they promoting the rest of the 
Jewish community?  Jacob replied that all Jewish organizations are in trouble and Chabad plays a 
major role in engaging the unaffiliated. 
 

Their role in the community needs to be taken into account.  A concern was raised about the 
significant amount of money that was under consideration to grant to them.  The dollar amount 
should be discussed; however, this is an opportunity to look at Chabad as part of the greater 
Jewish community and have a conversation with them about how they support the community 
and a chance to be a good community partner.   
 

An important procedural question is what are they being called?  What the synagogues were told 
is that they would be assessed after the High Holidays.  Is Chabad a synagogue grant, in which 
case the question is why this is being done now, or if it’s an agency grant this should be 
discussed?  Staff responded that, with the synagogues, the assumption was, due to their similar 
membership models, they collected their dues their dues at the beginning of FY2020 and would 
not know what assistance they would need until around High Holidays, after they knew how the 
number of renewals they had and what additional scholarships they would need. Chabad does 
not have income coming from membership – and they expressed an urgent in need now for 

  
Page 11 of 31

 



4 
 

assistance, so they were put into the emergency consideration.  University of Hartford, 
Friendship Circle and camp are clearly more agency related and some of the money can be taken 
from the agency bucket.   
 

Sid commented there was a sense that the University of Hartford Chabad should be part of the 
agency bucket.  All the synagogues and agencies were told that if there was a real need, they 
should come forward, and Chabad were the ones who came forward.  The other synagogues are 
aware of this and to date they have not indicated a COVID‐19 related emergency need. 
 

David Waren noted that Chabad are four separate institutions raising their own money.  If they 
are viewed as separate institutions, the numbers are not disproportionate.   
  
Jacob noted Chabad is in dire straits and support is needed now. Some of this is about Chabad 
rabbis and families needing support ‐‐ because without them, Chabad goes away.  Also, Chabad 
doesn’t have any savings or endowments – most of their budget every year is dependent on 
fundraising. 

 

Gayle asked if this could fall into the humanitarian side to help the individuals who need help 
personally to keep Chabad going.  Laura replied they would have to fill out the application and 
could receive two rounds of $750 for a total of $1500. 
 

Jacob said assumptions made were on the size of the organizations’ budget, the number of 
people that were either members or participants, and the level of need; based on what is known 
about the organizations, grant estimates were then made for each as a context for discussion.   
 

The Committee agreed they wanted to be supportive of Chabad.  An amount could be awarded 
now and once all the other agencies and synagogues’ needs are reviewed, if there is money left 
over, their situation could be revisited. 
 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the Committee voted unanimously to recommend a 
grant of $25,000 for general operating support ($10,000 to Chabad of West Hartford and $5,000 
each to Chabad East of the River, Chabad of the Valley and University of Hartford Chabad).   
 

The recommendations will be made to the Foundation and Federation boards for approval after 
which the synagogues and agencies will be apprised of the results. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:24 pm.  
 
 

  
Page 12 of 31

 



             
 

 
 

Rapid Relief and Recovery Fund 
Grants Committee Funding Request Review 

 
 
Overview: 
The Rapid Relief and Recovery Fund (RRRF) has set aside approximately $505,000 ($280,000 
for agencies and $225,000 for synagogues) to provide local Jewish communal institutions 
with financial assistance to help with challenges faced as a result of COVID‐19. Generally, 
grants can be awarded for humanitarian need, scholarship/assistance to students and/or 
members or to help offset a decrease in revenue or fundraising that impacts ability to 
provide essential programs and services (see attached Guidelines for specifics).  
 
Staff, the Grants Committee Co‐Chairs and Liaisons have been meeting individually with 
institutions to review specifics of the grants program and assess need. Based upon those 
meetings, the following requests have been submitted by institutions indicating an 
immediate/critical need for assistance at this time.  
 
While we do not know the full extent of need at this time, based upon initial projections, we 
believe that the recommendations made today are in line with need and will leave sufficient 
funds for upcoming requests.  
 
Mandell Jewish Community Center 
The JCC was impacted immediately by COVID‐19 with closures of the fitness center and early 
childhood school as well as the need for accommodation of its summer camp and swim & 
tennis club. Despite all of this, the JCC was able to continue to offer some programming 
online via Zoom. 
The JCC has provided financial information and is projecting a $1mm+ deficit for FY2021.  
The loss of revenue was felt immediately and the JCC has immediate cash needs to continue 
its core programs as well as pay for operation of its fiscal plant. The RRRF can provide 
needed assistance now with cash flow while the JCC works on a fundraising plan to tackle its 
projected deficit.  
Recommendation: $50,000 for operating expenses (agency fund) 
 
Solomon Schechter Day School and New England Jewish Academy 
Our community’s two day schools have worked hard to continue operating despite the 
pandemic, offering classes online to all students from March through the end of the school 
year. Thanks to timing (most tuition is paid by March), PPP and other realized savings, the 
financial impact was not felt immediately. Parents praised the schools for the ability to pivot 
to a new educational environment so seamlessly. That being said, the schools were not 
spared financial impact due to COVID‐19. 

  
Page 13 of 31

 



As of now, both schools are anticipating enrollment for 2020‐21 to be the same or possibly a 
bit higher than 2019‐20. That being said, families have been hit financially by COVID‐19 and 
both schools are already anticipating six‐figure increases year over year for scholarship 
assistance.  The schools believe that fundraising will be challenging this year and must find 
other ways to provide assistance while still balancing their budgets. Knowing now that 
additional funds are available will help both schools in assuring families that they can meet 
their scholarship needs.  
Recommendation: $30,000 per school for scholarship assistance (agency fund) 
 
Mikveh Bess Israel  
The Mikveh has a small annual operating budget ($40,000) and is a volunteer‐run 
organization. They have limited fundraising capacity and have encountered unanticipated 
expenses due to COVID‐19 along with an expectation of reduced revenue over the coming 
year. Because of its small budget, any loss of revenue has an immediate negative impact on 
the organization. The Mikveh is a vital service for some members of our community and its 
continued operation is important for religious life in Greater Hartford. The Mikveh was 
planning on creating a strategic plan to address its future; including the potential of moving 
to a new location. While this is in the offing, the Mikveh is in immediate need of financial 
relief to continue operations.  
Recommendation: $5,000 for operations (agency fund) 
 
Chabad of Greater Hartford 
Chabad offers numerous programs throughout Greater Hartford and focuses on outreach to 
not only those who are involved, but to many unaffiliated members of our community as 
well. It is important to note that Chabad actually has four separate business operations: 

1. Chabad of West Hartford (also includes Camp Gan Israel & Friendship Circle) 
2. Chabad East of the River (Glastonbury) 
3. Chabad of the Valley (Simsbury) 
4. Chabad at the University of Hartford  

Chabad does not use a membership model; rather it relies upon donations to provide 
funding for it programs, services and operations. One of their biggest fundraisers of the year 
occurs around Passover and this year was significantly impacted by COVID‐19. Additionally, 
due to its business structure, very little was received through PPP. This has put an immediate 
an urgent strain on the organization as a whole. Chabad has requested immediate financial 
relief.  
Recommendation: Chabad of the Valley ‐ $5,000 for operations (synagogue fund) 
            Chabad East of the River ‐ $5,000 for operations (synagogue fund) 
            Chabad West Hartford ‐ $10,000 for operations (synagogue fund) 
            Chabad UHart ‐ $5,000 for operations (agency fund) 
 
 

  
Page 14 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 15 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 16 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 17 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 18 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 19 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 20 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 21 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 22 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 23 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 24 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 25 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 26 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 27 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 28 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 29 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 30 of 31

 



Agency Reports

  
Page 31 of 31

 


	2020-07-15_Agenda.pdf
	2020-07-15_Minutes.pdf
	06-12-20 Minutes.pdf
	06-18-20 Minutes.pdf

	2020-07-15_Grants.pdf
	grants minutes.pdf
	RRRF Grant Recommendations 7-2020 for approval - FINAL.pdf
	RRRF Agency Reports for Grants Cmte 7.20.pdf




